
 
 
    

OAK CREEK - FRANKLIN 
JOINT 27th STREET STEERING COMMITTEE 

 
October 9, 2007 

 
Meeting Minutes 

Approved November 7, 2007 
 
 

I.    Call to Order and Roll Call  (members Grintjes and Rhiner were present.  Also 
present were Doug Seymour, Doug Wheaton, Mark Kaminski Jeff Fleming (Zizzo 
Group), and Matt Hensler (Zizzo Group).   

 
 NOTE:  There was not a quorum of the committee present 

 
II. Citizen Comment Period. (no citizen comments were received) 

 
Jeff Fleming introduced Matt Hensler.  Matt just started with the Zizzo Group, and 
will be working on the corridor project. 

 
III. Approval of Meeting Minutes of September 26, 2007.  

This item was held until the next meeting. 

IV. Business 

A. Marketing of the South 27th Street Corridor, including, but not limited to, 
followup activities, and next steps in the preparation of the plan for branding, 
theme, logo, and public relations activities for the South 27th Street Corridor Plan 
Area. 

Jeff Fleming gave an update on the progress to date on the naming and logo initiative 
for the corridor. He said that there is some positioning work that needs to be done, 
but that we are still on schedule. 

The committee discussed the press release that was drafted for the cities reception of 
the Good Government Award.   

Doug Seymour mentioned that there was some internal concern on the part of one or 
more elected officials regarding the way that the Good Government award was 
portrayed by the local Franklin paper. It was suggested that there needed to be a 
protocol developed for elected officials in their dealings with the media.  Additional 
media training for elected officials was also suggested. 

Ted Grintjes spoke about the importance of having talking points as a reference for 
elected officials when they deal with the media.  Jeff Fleming suggested that the issue 
of talking points be included as an agenda item for the next steering committee 
meeting.  They (Zizzo) will work on these talking points. 

Doug Wheaton asked that the committee acknowledge the role that Doug Seymour 
played in the nomination and selection for the Good Government award. 



 
 
    

TG – We should develop a process for the cities to review drafts and press releases  
on a separate FTP site. 

Ted Grintjes also suggested that, in the future, the cities work in collaboration on 
nominations for awards and recognition. 

The committee discussed how information is posted to the websites for the respective 
communities. 

Doug Wheaton asked that the memorandum of understanding be revised to include 
the date upon which the Franklin Common Council approved the document.  Doug 
Seymour indicated that the date was reflective of when the City of Oak Creek entered 
into the MOU, but we would not object to separate language indicating when 
Franklin adopted the document. 

The final contract between Franklin and HNTB will be finalized in the next few days, 
now that the MOU is in place. 

Item B 

Mark Kaminski indicated that they are ready to proceed with the final draft of the 
streetscape manual but wanted to know how the committee wanted to account for the 
zoning element of the plan.  The committee advised HNTB to go ahead and prepare 
the final document without the inclusions of the zoning element.   Both Community 
Development Directors were in agreement. 

Jim Rhiner noted how important it is that we have a final document to use as a tool.  
As a case in point he mentioned how the City of Oak Creek is working with Liberty 
Property Trust on the selection of public streetlights for their development based on a 
draft of the plan.  They (Liberty) are using the lighting fixtures that we have specified.  
However there is no specification for color.  They are using brushed aluminum.  Jim 
Rhiner showed the committee the lighting fixture, and developed a list of 
specifications that can be presented to developers. 

Mark Kaminiski noted it was important that the colors of the fixtures and poles both 
match. 

The committee selected brushed aluminum as the preferred color choice for both 
fixtures and poles.  The ring is stainless steel brushed. The fixture is a natural 
aluminum paint. 

Ted Grintjes suggested that we go through the streetscape manual to identify all of 
the elements that we need to make decisions on, i.e. the color of the stone, the 
dimensions of a monument, etc… All of these things need to be decided ahead of time 
so that it is easier to have these discussions with developers. 

Mark Kaminski asked that there be separate discussions with the respective 
communities to make sure that we are still on track with the individual zoning 
components with each municipality. 

Ted Grintjes noted that the Franklin City Attorney just needed to clarify which items 
are included in the new zoning work that were not included in the original contract.  
He would like a report back to the steering committee at their next meeting. 



 
 
    

Item 4 

Ted Grintjes indicated that the City of Franklin is updating its sign and billboard 
ordinance.  It is being suggested that the steering committee, in cooperation with Oak 
Creek, come up with language to regulate signage on 27th Street.  He asked that the 
committee gets copies of both sign codes and then to review them to see what needs to 
be done on 27th Street. 

Doug Wheaton asked that the sign codes require visible address signs.  Doug 
Seymour suggested that, while this is a good idea, it is one of many details that need 
to be discussed when the Committee reviews the sign codes at a future meeting. 

Item C1 – Transportation Improvements 

Mark Kaminski suggested that a designer from HNTB be invited to attend a future 
steering committee meeting to address design issues with the proposed 60% 
intersection design at 27th and Rawson. 

Ted Grintjes thought that it may be difficult for the State to design in the streetscape 
elements into the intersection without an agreement with the communities on cost.  He 
thought it was important that we have an MOU with the WisDOT regarding 
streetscape. 

Doug Seymour asked if this MOU was specific to the project at 27th and Rawson, or 
if the MOU on streetscape costs and integration would apply to the entire corridor.  
Ted Grintjes indicated that it was his intent that the MOU would apply to all three 
projects within the corridor. 

Doug Seymour indicated that it is important that we have an understanding corridor-
wide, but that it may be easier for the DOT to have those MOU’s on a project specific 
basis. 

When the committee talks to the WisDOT Secretary, it should be within the context on 
a corridor-wide understanding on the integration of the streetscape elements.   

Ted Grintjes indicated that our objective in our meeting with the Secretary was to 
agree that 27th Street (including roundabouts) should be modeled. 

Mark Kaminski said that the Secretary would be less interested in the specifics of 
modeling the street, but would want to know what kind of resources that we need to 
accomplish our goals.  We should really stress that we are looking for coordination 
amongst the WisDOT project teams. 

Ted Grintjes noted that we need to stress the need for an efficient transportation 
system, as it is vital for the success of the corridor.  We then need to make sure we 
understand what (traffic) volumes go through there, and what is best to handle that, 
be it a regular intersection or a roundabout. 

Jim Rhiner said it is important to stress to the Secretary that the streetscape elements 
are an important part of the corridor.  Mark Kaminiski said that you needed to get 
him (Secretary Busalacchi) excited about what you are doing, remembering that this 
is probably the first time that he is going to be seeing much of this.  At that point you 
can get into the discussion as to how both communities can work with the DOT to 
achieve their mutual goals. 



 
 
    

Item B – letter 

Ted Grintjes said he is fine with the letter to the 27th and Rawson design team.  He 
asked that someone put it on a letterhead with both city’s logos for signatures by both 
Mayors.  Doug Seymour said he would take care of it.  

Item 2 – Meeting with WisDOT Secretary 

Ted Grintjes let the committee know that he and Jim Rhiner had met with Jeff 
Fleming to develop a preliminary PowerPoint presentation for use during the 
meeting between the mayors and Secretary Busalacchi. 

The committee reviewed an illustration (see attached) illustrating the various 
transportation improvements projects anticipated for the 27th Street corridor.  The 
committee discussed the need for the State to consider a more comprehensive 
approach to the reconstruction of 27th Street, since a good portion of the road will be 
reconstructed as part of individual improvements to intersections, especially between 
Rawson and Drexel.  The committee felt that there might be efficiencies and cost 
savings to be achieved by looking at all of those projects together. 

Mark Kaminski advised that this concept, while worthwhile, may be a bit too much 
for the Secretary to take in at this initial meeting. 

Jim Rhiner agreed and suggested that our goal be to work with WisDOT towards an 
MOU that would define the communication and cooperation roles of each of the 
separate WisDOT project teams and the steering committee.  The MOU should cover 
coordination, flexibility and cost efficiency. 

Mark Kaminski added that it is important that we build in enough time for the 
Secretary to ask questions throughout the presentation.  It is also important that we 
frame the discussion showing how this is an opportunity for the State to illustrate how 
their transportation investments are paying off in terms of private sector investment 
and jobs. 

Jeff Fleming concurred, and felt that this would be a good public relations 
opportunity for the State’s elected officials to show forward planning.  He suggested 
using a recurring theme of “No Regrets”, i.e. when we drive down 27th Street in ten 
years we should be confident in the fact that we did everything we could to make that 
a great street. 

The committee proceeded to review the remaining slides in the PowerPoint 
presentation. 

V. Next meeting date(s) and location(s). 
□ The next meeting will be Wednesday, September 26th at 4:30 p.m. at the 

Franklin City Hall. 

VI. Adjournment. 
□ motion to adjourn  by Rhiner, seconded by Myszkowski.  Meeting adjourned at 

9:31 

 


